
Page 1 of 2 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Colma Community Center 
1520 Hillside Boulevard 

Colma, CA 94014 

Wednesday, March 8, 2017 
CLOSED SESSION – 6:00 PM 

REGULAR SESSION – 7:00 PM 

CLOSED SESSION – 6:00 PM 

1. In Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 – Conference with
Labor Negotiators

Agency Negotiators: Sean Rabé, City Manager 
Austris Rungis, IEDA 

Unrepresented Employees: Chief of Police

2. In Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 – Conference with
Labor Negotiators

Agency Negotiators: Austris Rungis, IEDA 
Unrepresented Employees: City Manager

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL – 7:00 PM 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Comments on the Consent Calendar and Non-Agenda Items will be heard at this time. 
Comments on Agenda Items will be heard when the item is called. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

3. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the February 22, 2017 Regular Meeting.

4. Motion to Approve Report of Checks Paid for February 2017.

5. Motion Accepting the 2016 Annual Report on the Implementation of the General Plan, Including
the Housing Element.

6. Motion to Receive and File the Semi-Annual Report of Investment Holdings, Which is Presented
for Informational Purposes.



Page 2 of 2 

7. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Establishing and Approving the Vantagecare Retirement Health
Savings (RHS) Program and Approving Related Documents to Implement the Program.

PUBLIC HEARING 

8. ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT ORDINANCE

Consider: Motion to Introduce an Ordinance Amending Various Provisions in Chapter 5 and 
Adding Subchapter 5.19 to the Colma Municipal Code Regarding Accessory Dwelling Unit 
Regulations and Finding the Ordinance to be Statutorily Exempt from Environmental Review 
Pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21080.17, and Waive a Further Reading of the Order.

NEW BUSINESS 

9. TOWN HALL RENOVATION BUDGET AMENDMENT

Consider: Motion to Adopt a Resolution Amending Budget Appropriations for Fiscal Year 2016-
2017 Regarding the Town Hall Renovation Project Budget.

REPORTS 

Mayor/City Council 

City Manager 

ADJOURNMENT 
The City Council Meeting Agenda Packet and supporting documents are available for review at the Colma Town Hall, 1188 El 
Camino Real, Colma, CA during normal business hours (Mon – Fri 8am-5pm). Persons interested in obtaining an agenda via e-
mail should call Caitlin Corley at 650-997-8300 or email a request to ccorley@colma.ca.gov.  

Reasonable Accommodation 
Upon request, this publication will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required 
by the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability, who requires a modification or accommodation to 
view the agenda, should direct such a request to Brian Dossey, ADA Coordinator, at 650-997-8300 or 
brian.dossey@colma.ca.gov. Please allow two business days for your request to be processed. 

mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov
mailto:brian.dossey@colma.ca.gov


1. In Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 – Conference
with Labor Negotiators

Agency Negotiators: Sean Rabé, City Manager 
Austris Rungis, IEDA 

Unrepresented Employees: Chief of Police

There is no staff report for this item. 

Item #1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



2. In Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 – Conference
with Labor Negotiators

Agency Negotiators: Austris Rungis, IEDA 
Unrepresented Employees: City Manager

There is no staff report for this item. 

Item #2



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Page 1 of 4 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Colma Community Center, 1520 Hillside Boulevard 

Colma, CA 94014 
Wednesday, February 22, 2017 

7:00 p.m.  

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Helen Fisicaro called the Regular Meeting of the City Council to order at 7:08 p.m. 

Council Present – Mayor Helen Fisicaro, Vice Mayor Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez, Council 
Members Joanne F. del Rosario and John Irish Goodwin were all present. Council Member 
Diana Colvin was absent. 

Staff Present – City Manager Sean Rabé, City Attorney Christopher Diaz, Chief of Police Kirk 
Stratton, Director of Public Works Brad Donohue, City Planner Michael Laughlin, City Clerk 
Caitlin Corley and Assistant Planner Jonathan Kwan were in attendance.  

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Mayor Fisicaro asked if there were any proposed changes to the agenda. None were 
requested.  The Mayor asked for a motion to adopt the agenda. 

Action:  Council Member del Rosario moved to adopt the agenda; the motion was 
seconded by Vice Mayor Gonzalez and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Helen Fisicaro, Mayor  
Raquel Gonzalez  
Joanne F. del Rosario  
John Irish Goodwin  
Diana Colvin  

4 0 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Mayor Fisicaro opened the public comment period at 7:03 p.m. and seeing no one come 
forward to speak, she closed the public comment period. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the February 22, 2017 Regular Meeting.

Action: Council Member del Rosario moved to approve the Consent Calendar item #1; the 
motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Gonzalez and carried by the following vote: 

Item #3



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
 4 0    

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

2. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT – 2300 HILLSIDE BOULEVARD 

City Attorney Christopher Diaz announced that Council Member John Goodwin would be 
recusing himself out of an abundance of caution because he lives within 500 feet of the 
edge of Holy Cross Cemetery, the property owner for this item. City Attorney Christopher 
Diaz did indicate he would research whether the FPPC regulations only apply to the project 
site versus the entire property.  Council Member Goodwin then stepped down from the dais 
and out of the room. 

Assistant City Planner Jonathan Kwan presented the staff report.  Mayor Fisicaro opened the 
public hearing at 7:12 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the public 
hearing. Council discussion followed. 

Action: Council Member del Rosario made a motion to adopt a Resolution Approving a 
Conditional Use Permit to Allow a Modular Office and Landscaping Storage Yard at 2300 
Hillside Boulevard (APN: 011-370-180) Pursuant to CEQA Guideline 15303(c); the motion 
was seconded by Vice Mayor Gonzalez and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
 3 0    

  
 Council Member Goodwin returns to the dais.  

3. A-1 RECYCLING & WASTE REDUCTION, INC. RECYCLER’S PERMIT 

City Planner Michael Laughlin presented the staff report.  Mayor Fisicaro opened the public 
comment period at 7:19 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the 
public comment period. Council discussion followed. 

Action: Council Member del Rosario made a motion to adopt a Resolution Approving a 
Recycler’s Permit for the Collection of Cardboard from Commercial Businesses Pursuant to 
CEQA Guideline 15061(b)(3); the motion was seconded by Vice Mayor and carried by the 
following vote: 



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
 4 0    

4. MID-YEAR BUDGET REPORT AND ADJUSTMENTS TO FY 2016-17 BUDGET  

City Manager Sean Rabé presented the staff report.  Mayor Fisicaro opened the public 
comment period at 7:30 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the 
public comment period. Council discussion followed. 

Action: Council Member Goodwin made a motion to Adopt a Resolution Amending Budget 
Appropriations for Fiscal Year 2016-2017; the motion was seconded by Council Member del 
Rosario and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
 4 0    

5. STERLING PARK PARKING ISSUES  

City Manager Sean Rabé and Police Chief Kirk Stratton presented the staff report. Mayor 
Fisicaro opened the public comment period at 7:49 p.m. Business owner Yvette Cortez and 
residents Dennis Fisicaro, Ruby Paniagua and Dianne Chiappari made comments. Council 
discussion followed.  

This item was for discussion only; no action was taken at this meeting.  

COUNCIL CALENDARING 

The next Regular City Council Meetings will be on and Wednesday, March 8, 2017 at 7:00 
p.m. and Wednesday, March 22, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. 

REPORTS 

City Manager Sean Rabé gave a report on the following topics: 

 The Colma Police Department and the Colma Fire Protection District will cohost an 
Emergency Preparedness event “Are You Ready?” on April 19, 2017. 

 Officer Kim Trask received a commendation from Daly City Police Department for her help 
on a call. 

 Chief Stratton gave a report on a recent arrest at Home Depot.  



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

ADJOURNMENT AND CLOSE IN MEMORY  

The meeting was adjourned by Mayor Fisicaro at 8:32 p.m. and closed in memory of 
Elizabeth Anne Biagini, mother in law of Fire Chief Geoff Balton, and Whittier Police Officer 
Keith Boyer, who was killed in the line of duty.  
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Caitlin Corley 
City Clerk 



Item #4







































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report – 2016 General Plan Annual Report Page 1 of 4 
March 8, 2017 

STAFF REPORT 

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Michael P. Laughlin, AICP, City Planner 

VIA:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: March 8, 2017 

SUBJECT: 2016 General Plan and Housing Element Annual Report 

RECOMMENDATION 

MOTION ACCEPTING THE 2016 ANNUAL REPORT ON THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 
GENERAL PLAN, INCLUDING THE HOUSING ELEMENT  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Each year, the town is required to submit annual reports on the implementation of the General 
Plan and Housing Element to the state. Prior to staff sending the report to the state, the City 
Council must accept the report. As shown in the attached General Plan Implementation Status 
Sheets, there were several General Plan policies that were furthered this year.  The most 
significant actions taken in 2016 were the approval of the Mercy Housing project and the Tealdi 
subdivision, both of which are housing sites identified in the Housing Element. The City Council 
also adopted a Nexus study and housing impact fees. Construction and gardening equipment 
noise ordinances were adopted to further the policies of the Noise Element.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

The preparation of the 2016 Annual Report on the status of implementation of the General Plan 
does not have an impact on the Town’s adopted budget. 

BACKGROUND 

California Government Code Section 65400 requires that an Annual Report be prepared that 
details the status of implementation of the General Plan. A separate report is required for the 
status of the Housing Element. This report is to be submitted to the City Council, the Governor’s 
Office of Planning and Research, and the California Department of Housing and Community 
Development. This report is required to include details of the progress toward implementation 
of each of the elements within the General Plan.  

A city’s General Plan serves as the overall guide and vision for all of the community’s land use 
and development activities. Due to the fact that a General Plan requires periodic updates to 
accurately reflect changes in values and priorities of a community, it is important that local 
jurisdictions review their General Plans and the status of implementation of the measures 

Item #5



Staff Report – 2016 General Plan Annual Report  Page 2 of 4 
March 8, 2017 

included in each element of the Plan. It is the goal of this Annual Report to provide a tool for 
this review. 

The General Plan contains the seven State required elements: Land Use, Circulation, Housing, 
Open Space/Conservation, Noise and Safety. The law does not require specific time limits on 
updates to the General Plan, with the exception of the Housing Element. However, it is essential 
that a community’s General Plan is current and consistent with zoning regulations and changes 
within the community. As the City Council is aware, most of Colma’s General Plan dates back to 
1999 and is in need of updating. Over the past calendar year, Staff has also made progress on 
the 2035 General Plan update.  

ANALYSIS 

Attached is a table that details each of the policies set forth in elements of the General Plan. 
The tables contain the implementation measure for each policy along with a status update for 
each policy. Many of the polices are implemented on a case by case basis, and require ongoing 
implementation as projects are submitted to staff for review. However, some policies are quite 
outdated and show the age of our General Plan and are evidence of our need for a General Plan 
update. The discussion below highlights actions by element (only elements where a significant 
action occurred are listed): 

Housing Element 

The following list summarizes the highlights of the Housing Element: 

• The application for a 66 unit veteran’s affordable housing project was approved. The project 
is scheduled to be completed by 2018. If this project is built, it will satisfy not only the 
Town’s entire regional housing number (59) for this housing cycle, but will also satisfy the 
entire affordable housing production goal for the 8-year Housing Element cycle. 

• The City Council adopted Housing Impact Fees for commercial and residential development 
to provide funds for affordable housing development.  

• The City Council has approved the subdivision of the Tealdi greenhouse lots on B Street. 9 
new lots have been created, 8 of which are intended for new single family dwelling units.   

• Colma continues to provide funding to programs such as the Human Investment Project, 
and Lifemoves as discussed in the Housing Element.  

• The number of section 8 units in the Town remains at 8 units between 2015 and 2016.  
 
Additional information about Housing Element compliance can be found in Tables A-C, attached. 
Since this is a table generated through the state HCD website, there are typing errors 
generated by their system that cannot be corrected.  

 
 
 
  



Staff Report – 2016 General Plan Annual Report  Page 3 of 4 
March 8, 2017 

Circulation Element  
 
No policy implementation occurred this year on the General Plan Circulation Element 

Land Use Element 

No policy implementation occurred this year on the General Plan Land Use Element 

Open Space and Conservation Element 

No policy implementation occurred this year on the General Plan Open Space and Conservation 
Element 

Noise Element 

The City Council adopted Ordinance amending Colma Municipal Code Section 5.04.220 relating 
to the standard hours of construction. This was done to address complaints regarding 
construction noise and allow staff to enforce construction noise violations. In addition, the Town 
adopted a garden equipment noise ordinance.  

Safety Element 

The City Council adopted a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan that furthers the goals of the Safety 
Element.   

Historical Resources Element 

No policy implementation occurred this year on the General Plan Historical Resources Element. 
The new draft of the Historical Resources Element will be folded into the amended General Plan 
prior to its review and adoption. 

Council Adopted Values 

The Annual Report on the General Plan complies with the Council’s commitment to 
Responsibility  through the periodic review of the implementation of adopted policies and 
programs. 

Sustainability Impact 

None 
 
Alternatives  

1. The City Council could take no action. Doing so is not recommended, however, because the 
Town would not be in compliance with the requirements of Government Code Section 
65400. 
 

2. The City Council could provide direction to staff to make changes in the General Plan Annual 
Report and forward the report to the state. 

  



Staff Report – 2016 General Plan Annual Report  Page 4 of 4 
March 8, 2017 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends that the City Council, by motion, accept the 2016 Annual Report on the 
status of Implementation of the General Plan and Housing Element. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. 2016 Annual Report on the Implementation of the Housing Element, including Tables A-C 
B. 2016 Annual Report on the Implementation of the General Plan, Remaining Elements 

























 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  































































Staff Report re Semi-Annual Report of Investments  Page 1 of 4 
2.20.2017 

STAFF REPORT 

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Sean Rabé, City Manager / Town Treasurer 

MEETING DATE: March 8, 2017 

SUBJECT: Semi-Annual Report of Investment Holdings 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council approve a: 

MOTION TO RECEIVE AND FILE THE SEMI-ANNUAL REPORT OF INVESTMENT 
HOLDINGS, WHICH IS PRESENTED FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

As part of day to day operations the Town maintains cash balances which can be invested to 
provide additional revenue.  The City Manager has been designated by City Council Resolution 
as the Treasurer.  The adopted Investment policy provides for the Treasurer to make periodic 
reports of balances held as investments.  The majority of the Town investments are placed in 
public agency investment pools, which invest funds for more than one public agency.  The 
reported investments are in compliance with the Town Investment policy and are appropriately 
structured to allow the Town to meet its expenditure requirements for the next six months. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The adopted FY 2016-2017 Budget projected total interest revenue to be $141,300 for all 
funds.  

BACKGROUND 

As stated in the adopted Town Investment policy, the Treasurer shall prepare a report to the 
City Council not less than semi-annually.  In accordance with the policy the report was 
available within 60 days following December 31st.  Further the policy requires that the semi-
annual report shall be presented at a subsequent regularly scheduled City Council Meeting. 
The report is to include an overview of the investment activity including: a monthly listing of 
investment transactions if any; a Report the beginning and ending balance by quarter; 
Provide a separate breakdown of the quarterly balance based on the Investment Pool (LAIF, 
SMCIF, etc); Provide net Deposits and Withdrawals for the period; Identify total interest for 
the quarter; and Provide the interest rates earned including a cumulative weighted average. 
This report provides the required information, including additional narrative explanations.  

Item #6



Staff Report re Semi-Annual Report of Investments   Page 2 of 4 
2.20.2017 

ANALYSIS 

Portfolio Overview  

As shown below, during the first two quarters of Fiscal Year 2016-2017 the Town Portfolio 
averaged $31.3 million. The amount invested each of the first two quarters fluctuated based on 
cash flow.  

 

The quarterly balance at the end of the first quarter was $30.3 million and had increased to 
$32.3 million by the end of the second quarter December 31, 2016. The report includes 
balances held in First National Bank as well as Government Agency Investment pools. 

Included above, is a summary of funds obtained as part of the Town Hall Renovation Certificate 
of Participation Financing would typically not be reported as part of the Town Portfolio. The 
investment of these funds is subject to the financing documents. The majority of the funds are 
held in the State Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) and subject to restrictions on the timing 
of withdrawals. The Trustee Bank (Bank of New York Mellon) processes withdrawals based on 
instructions from the Town. These funds will be expended as construction on the project 
continues and are shown to provide a more complete disclosure.   



Staff Report re Semi-Annual Report of Investments   Page 3 of 4 
2.20.2017 

Transaction Activity within Investment Pools 

The Town has funds invested in two government agency investment pools. Local Agency 
Investment Fund (LAIF) is managed by the State Treasurer and accepts deposits from over 
2,400 agencies throughout the State and has a portfolio in excess of $21 billion. These funds 
are relatively liquid with a limit of fifteen transactions per month. The San Mateo County 
Investment Fund is a similar arrangement managed by the San Mateo County Treasurer.  As of 
December 31, 2016 the SMCIF had approximately $5 Billion invested. This includes County 
funds as well as cities, school districts, and other special districts.  

Included below is the balance in each of the investment pools at the beginning and end of each 
quarter. The net withdrawals and deposits for each quarter are also presented as background 
on the overall level of transactions. Due to the balance of funds retained with the commercial 
bank investment transactions in the investment pools are limited to the posting of interest. 

 

Earnings / Distribution of Portfolio   

Outlined below is information related to the distribution of investments at the end of each 
quarter (Bank compared to LAIF compared To SMCIF). The average over the first two quarters 
was 12% invested in LAIF, 28% in First National Bank, and 60% in the SMCIF. Placing idle 
funds in more than one investment provides a level of diversity for the overall portfolio.  

 



Staff Report re Semi-Annual Report of Investments   Page 4 of 4 
2.20.2017 

 

The information presented above also outlines the interest earnings for the investments held by 
the Town.  Overall interest rates are rising as the Federal regulators are increasing interest 
rates. For the first two quarters the weighted average earnings of the portfolio was 
approximately 0.676%. In accordance with the adopted policy the investment of public funds 
emphasizes safety, liquidity, and then yield. The public Agency pools are structured to align 
with these goals. 

Reasons For the Recommended Action 

Receipt of this report complies with the adopted Investment Policy.  

Values 

The Staff recommendation is consistent with the Council adopted values of: 

• Responsibility: Making decisions after prudent consideration of their financial impact, 
taking into account the long-term financial needs of the agency, especially its financial 
stability. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends the City Council receive and file the report.  



Staff Report Establishment of RHS  Page 1 of 4 

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Lori Burns, Human Resources Manager 

VIA:  Sean Rabé, City Manager; Christopher J. Diaz, City Attorney 

MEETING DATE: March 8, 2017 

SUBJECT: Establish a Retiree Health Savings Program  

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following: 

RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING AND APPROVING THE VANTAGECARE 
RETIREMENT HEALTH SAVINGS (RHS) PROGRAM AND APPROVING 
RELATED DOCUMENTS TO IMPLEMENT THE PROGRAM 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

In the Memorandum of Understandings (MOUs) effective January 1, 2016, the Town and its two 
bargaining units, the Peace Officers Association (POA) and the Police Communications/Records 
Association (PCRA), agreed to establish the VantageCare Retiree Health Savings Program 
(RHSP) as soon as administratively possible to provide portable retiree health reimbursement 
accounts for: (a) all members hired on or after January 1, 2017, and (b) members hired before 
January 1, 2017 who make a one-time irrevocable election to receive the RHSP benefit in lieu of 
the retiree health benefits they would have otherwise been entitled to (“Irrevocable Election”). 
The RHSP accounts will also be established for: (a) unrepresented employees hired on or after 
January 1, 2017, and (b) unrepresented employees hired before January 1, 2017 who an 
Irrevocable Election.   

The Resolution, Plan, Adoption Agreement, Administrative Service Agreement, and Trust are all 
required documents to implement the RHSP. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The proposed resolution authorizes the establishment of an RHSP allowing the Town flexibility 
to control and reduce the cost of providing medical insurance to separated employees 
participating in the RHSP.  Through the RHSP, administered by ICMA/RC, the Town can set 
contributions to employee-owned accounts without the restrictions imposed by PEMHCA.  It is 
expected that these actions will significantly reduce the Town’s future liabilities as related to 
GASB 45 Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB).  When all current employees, annuitants and 
dependents are no longer on the Town’s Public Employees' Medical & Hospital Care Act 
(PEMHCA) plan as supplemented by additional contributions by the Town to a Section 125 plan 

Item #7



Staff Report Establishment of RHS   Page 2 of 4 

or health reimbursement arrangement (“HRA”), as appropriate, the Town’s retiree medical 
obligation will be limited to the PEMHCA Minimum, but only if the employee becomes an eligible 
Town annuitant. 
 
BACKGROUND 

When the Town elected to participate in PEMHCA in 1974, it resolved to pay equal amounts for 
the cost of medical insurance for employees and annuitants1 pursuant to what is commonly 
referred to as a PEMHCA resolution.  This is a binding resolution between the Town and PERS 
meaning that within the PEMHCA system, the Town must pay the same contribution for 
employee and annuitants health premiums, except for those annuitants hired on or after the 
effective date of a health benefit vesting schedule, until a new PEMHCA resolution supersedes 
the existing one(s).   
 
In 2008 an actuarial report determined the Town’s unfunded liability related to OPEB2 liability to 
be between $5.4 and $9.7 million depending on which discount rate is used (7.75% or 4%).  
The Town’s 2015 actuarial report determined the Town’s unfunded liability related to its OPEB 
to be $6.6 million.  At that time, the City Council made the prudent decision to deposit $1 
million in an irrevocable trust to pre-fund OPEB liabilities. The 2016 unfunded OPEB liability is 
estimated to be $6.2 million. 
 
In response to that data, the Town took several steps to control its escalating unfunded liability 
related to its OPEB including: (1) capping the Town’s contribution at the second most expensive 
plan offered by PEMHCA for newly hired members of the POA effective July 1, 2008, (2) 
capping the Town’s contribution at the second most expensive plan offered by PEMHCA for 
newly hired Members of the PCRA effective June 1, 2010, and (3) adopting the State Vesting 
Schedule for all employees for the purposes of determining retiree medical insurance 
contributions by the Town effective July 1, 2012.  More recently, the City Council passed a 
resolution resetting the Town’s contribution for medical insurance premiums for employees and 
annuitants effective April 1, 2017 to the PEMHCA Minimum and funding any applicable 
difference between the amount provided pursuant to an MOU or policy and the PEMHCA 
Minimum through a Section 125 plan or an HRA.   
 
To offset the cost of retiree medical insurance premiums for employees hired on or after 
January 1, 2017, the Town committed to establishing a RHSP, which it will fund at 1.5% of the 
employee’s base salary as set in its approved salary schedule.  The employee will self-direct the 
investment of his/her individual account and will have access to the funds when separated from 
the Town whether through retirement or otherwise.  Use of the funds in the RHSP account will 
be subject to IRS rules.   

                                           
1 Person drawing a PERS retirement warrant.  Any employee who is at least 50 years of age with five years of PERS service credit 
can apply for retirement benefits and become an annuitant, thus eligible for the Town’s retiree health.  An employee must apply for 
PERS retirement within 120 days of separation from service to be eligible for PEMHCA into retirement and the Town’s contribution 
to retiree health care. 
2 Other post-employment benefits (OPEB) are the benefits that an employee will begin to receive at the start of retirement. This 
does not include pension benefits paid to the retired employee. Other post-employment benefits that a retiree can be compensated 
for and which can generate unfunded liabilities are “health and welfare” benefits such as medical, dental and vision premiums. 
 
 
 



Staff Report Establishment of RHS   Page 3 of 4 

 
ANALYSIS 

In order to contain medical insurance costs while fulfilling previously made commitments to 
current employees and annuitants, the Town passed a resolution resetting the Town’s 
contribution for medical insurance premiums for employees and annuitants to the PEMHCA 
Minimum.  Any additional contributions due under an MOU or policy will be funded by the Town  
through a Section 125 plan for employee and an HRA for annuitants.  However, the Town’s 
retiree health contribution on behalf of employees hired on or after January 1, 2017, and 
employees making an Irrevocable Election, will be limited to the PEMHCA Minimum (currently 
$128 per month) which will be supplemented with the accrued balance in an RHSP account.   
 
The following outlines the Town’s plan to accomplish this.  
 
• Within PEMHCA, the Town’s contribution for each eligible employee or annuitant, shall be 

the PEMHCA Minimum.  
 

• In addition to the PEMHCA Minimum:  
 

o For eligible employees, the Town will contribute any additional amount necessary to 
pay its obligation under the applicable MOU or Town policy, minus the PEMHCA 
Minimum, to employees as determined by hire date, enrollment and bargaining 
group via its Flexible Benefits Plan (Section 125 Cafeteria flex dollars); and 

o For eligible annuitants, the Town will contribute any additional amount necessary to 
pay its obligation under the applicable MOU or Town policy, minus the PEMHCA 
Minimum, to employees as determined by hire date, enrollment and bargaining 
group via its Health Reimbursement Arrangement (HRA) from which reimbursements 
will be made to said eligible annuitants; and 

o For employees hired on or after January 1, 2017, and employees making an 
Irrevocable Election, the Town will contribute 1.5% of his/her monthly base salary 
while employed to an account under the RHSP to be used at separation from Town 
employment for out-of-pocket medical expenses and individual health insurance 
premiums. 

 
COUNCIL ADOPTED VALUES 
 
The Staff recommendation is consistent with the Council adopted values of: 
 
• Fairness:  Make decisions based on the merits of the issue. 

• Responsibility: Make decisions after prudent consideration of their financial impact, taking 
into account the long-term financial needs of the agency, especially its financial stability; and 

• Vision: Promote intelligent and thoughtful innovation in order to forward the Town's policies 
and services. 



Staff Report Establishment of RHS   Page 4 of 4 

ALTERNATIVES 

Council could choose to reject Staff’s recommendation. This would negate the negotiated cost 
containment measures included in the recently ratified MOUs and discussed with unrepresented 
employees.   

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends adopting the attached resolution which authorizes the establishment of an 
RHSP for employees hired on or after January 1, 2017, and employees making an Irrevocable 
Election, to be used to reimburse out-of-pocket medical expense upon separation from Town 
employment.   
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A. Resolution Adopting the VantageCare Retirement Health Savings Program, including 

the following exhibits: 
• Exhibit A, Town of Colma’s Retiree Welfare Benefits Plan 
• Exhibit B, VantageCare Retirement Health Savings Adoption Agreement 
• Exhibit C, Administrative Service Agreement  
• Exhibit D, Declaration of Trust of the Town of Colma Integral Part Trust 

 



Res. 2017-__- Establishment of RHS Page 1 of 6 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-__ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING AND APPROVING THE VANTAGECARE 
RETIREMENT HEALTH SAVINGS (RHS) PROGRAM AND APPROVING 

RELATED DOCUMENTS TO IMPLEMENT THE PROGRAM 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve: 

1. Background.

(a) The Town of Colma has taken certain steps to address the long term financial health of
the Town by controlling costs associated with retiree health benefits. 

(b) As part of that process, the Town of Colma intends to establish a retiree health savings 
program sponsored by ICMA/RC. 

(c) The Town of Colma has various employees who provide valuable services to the Town of 
Colma community. 

(d) The establishment of a retiree health savings program for such employees serves the 
interests of the Town by enabling it to provide reasonable security regarding employee health 
needs during retirement. 

(e) The establishment of a retiree health savings program also provides increased flexibility 
in its personnel management system, and by assisting in the attraction and retention of 
competent personnel. 

2. Findings.

(a) The City Council finds that the establishment of a retiree health savings program serves
the objectives identified in Section 1 above. 

3. Order.

(a) The City Council hereby establishes the retiree health savings program by approving the
ICMA Retirement Corporation’s VantageCare Retirement Health Savings Program (the 
“Program”), comprised of: (1) the Town of Colma’s Retiree Welfare Benefits Plan (the “Plan”) as 
shown on Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference; (2) VantageCare 
Retirement Health Savings Adoption Agreement as shown on Exhibit "B" attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference; and (3) the Administrative Service Agreement between ICMA 
Retirement Corporation and the Town of Colma as shown on Exhibit "C" attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference.   

(b)  The City Council hereby orders the assets of the Plan to be held in trust, with the Town 
of Colma, the Employer, serving as trustee for the exclusive benefit of all Plan participants and 
their survivors, and the assets of the Plan shall not be diverted to any other purpose prior to the 
satisfaction of all liabilities of the Plan. 

Attachment A



Res. 2017-__- Establishment of RHS Page 2 of 6 

(c)  The City Council directs the City Manager to execute any and all documents necessary to 
establish the Program, with minor changes if deemed necessary by the City Manager and City 
Attorney, including the Declaration of Trust of the Town of Colma Integral Part Trust in the 
form attached hereto as Exhibit “D” and incorporated herein by reference. 

(d)  The City Council also directs the City Manager to be the coordinator and contact for the 
Program and receive any and all reports, notices or any other documents regarding the 
Program. 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2017-__ was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on March 8, 2017 by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      

Raquel Gonzalez        

Joanne del Rosario       

Diana Colvin      

John Irish Goodwin      

Voting Tally      

 
 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Helen Fisicaro, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

 

 

  



Res. 2017-__- Establishment of RHS Page 3 of 6 

EXHIBIT A 

TOWN OF COLMA’S RETIREE WELFARE BENEFITS PLAN  

 

[Attached behind this cover page] 

 

  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Exhibit A





















Res. 2017-__- Establishment of RHS Page 4 of 6 

EXHIBIT B 

VANTAGECARE RETIREMENT HEALTH SAVINGS ADOPTION AGREEMENT  

 

[Attached behind this cover page] 

 
 

  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Exhibit B



One time opt in if hired before 1/1/17; manditory participation if hired after 1/1/17.



None.

None.











Res. 2017-__- Establishment of RHS Page 5 of 6 

EXHIBIT C 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICE AGREEMENT BETWEEN ICMA RETIREMENT 
CORPORATION AND THE TOWN OF COLMA  

 

[Attached behind this cover page] 

 
  



Exhibit C















Res. 2017-__- Establishment of RHS Page 6 of 6 

EXHIBIT D 

DECLARATION OF TRUST OF THE TOWN OF COLMA INTEGRAL PART TRUST  

 

[Attached behind this cover page] 

 



Exhibit D



















 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report re Accessory Dwelling Units  Page 1 of 5 
25977.00100\29520671.1
02/09/17  

STAFF REPORT 

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Michael P. Laughlin, City Planner 
Christopher J. Diaz, City Attorney 

VIA:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: March 8, 2017 

SUBJECT: Accessory Dwelling Unit Ordinance 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council introduce the following ordinance: 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING VARIOUS PROVISIONS IN CHAPTER 5 AND ADDING 
SUBCHAPTER 5.19 TO THE COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING ACCESSORY 
DWELLING UNIT REGULATIONS AND FINDING THE ORDINANCE TO BE STATUTORILY 
EXEMPT FROM ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW PURSUANT TO PUBLIC RESOURCES CODE 
SECTION 21080.17, AND WAIVE A FURTHER READING OF THE ORDINANCE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

New state laws relating to Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU’s), Senate Bill 1069 and Assembly Bill 
2299, became effective on January 1, 2017.  The bills were enacted to require jurisdictions in 
California to ease restrictions on additional units in single-family residential neighborhoods in 
order to increase the supply of housing in California. The proposed amendments are 
mandatory, and where a local ordinance has not been updated, the state law takes precedence. 
The Town’s current regulations only allow ADU’s in the R zone. The attached ordinance amends 
the Town’s existing requirements and continues the allowance of ADU’s in the R zone and 
clarifies that new ADU’s are permitted on lots developed with existing single-family residences 
in the C (commercial) and G (cemetery) zones with expedited processing at a staff level 
(ministerial).  In addition, state law mandates that ADU’s meeting certain conditions be allowed 
within the footprint of an existing single-family residence.  Thus, the ordinance also allows 
ADU’s within the footprint of an existing single-family residence located with the R-S and R zone 
with a building permit as required by state law. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The proposed ordinance may have a very minor fiscal impact on the Town because of services 
required for new residents if additional units are created as a result of the ordinance. Given that 
Colma is largely built-out, the number of potential units is anticipated to be small.  

Item #8



Staff Report re Accessory Dwelling Units  Page 2 of 5 
25977.00100\29520671.1  
02/09/17  

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS 

The Town allows for single-family residences in the following zones: 

• R-S (Residential, Sterling Park) This is the residential neighborhood between El Camino 
Real and Hillside Boulevard and between F Street and B Street.  The neighborhood 
contains a majority of single-family homes but also includes some multi-unit buildings 
that pre date the zoning. Many of the lots are about 3,300 square feet. 

• R (Residential) This zone includes a limited number of residences on Hillside Boulevard 
south of Lawndale Boulevard. 

• G (Cemetery). These units are in the form of caretaker units.  There are several of these 
located on cemetery grounds.  

• C (Commercial). The Town’s commercial zoning allows for single-family residences in 
commercial zones and where allowed by the General Plan. Multi-family is also allowed in 
these limited areas.  The location of these existing single family residences includes 
Mission Road and Hillside Boulevard. 

The Town's General Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and Housing Element encourage the creation of 
affordable housing through a variety of mechanisms including the allowance of second units 
(now referred to as Accessory Dwelling Units or ADU’s) in specified zones within the Town.  
Specifically, second units are permitted in the Residential “R” zone which is located on Hillside 
Boulevard south of Lawndale Boulevard. New ADU’s are currently not permitted in the Sterling 
Park, “R-S” zone since this is a high density single-family residential neighborhood.  

Since the adoption of the Town of Colma Housing Element in 2015, and due to the strong 
economy, California continues to experience a shortage of housing. In response, the state of 
California has recently passed legislation regarding ADU’s. These changes to the California 
Government Code, which became effective on January 1, 2017, require that the Town update 
the Municipal Code (CMC) to be consistent with state law.   

The proposed ordinance takes the existing requirements in the general zoning section of the 
CMC and creates a separate chapter for ease of reference.  

Some of the most substantive changes to the State's Code have implications for building, fire 
and utilities that are not necessarily reflected in the updated zoning code but will be addressed 
by the applicable departments at the time of building permit. Some of these changes are 
summarized below: 

• ADU’s shall not be required to provide fire sprinklers if they are not required for the 
primary residence. 

• ADU shall not be considered new residential uses for the purposes of calculating local 
agency connection fees or capacity charges for utilities, including water and sewer 
service. 



Staff Report re Accessory Dwelling Units  Page 3 of 5 
25977.00100\29520671.1  
02/09/17  

• For ADU’s created within an existing structure, a local agency shall not require the 
applicant to install a new or separate utility connection directly between the ADU  and 
the utility or impose a related connection fee or capacity  charge. 

• For ADU’s created through the addition of new floor area, a local agency may require a 
new or separate utility connection directly between the ADU and the utility. 

The attached ordinance addresses two facets of the requirements as discussed below: 

Existing Single-Family Residences w ithin single family residential zones (R 
and R-S zones) 

The new legislation requires that an ADU be permitted within the footprint of an existing 
single family structure located within a single-family residential zone.  For these 
situations, the following rules would apply: 

• One unit must be owner occupied and a deed restriction recorded; 

• Is not required to install a new or separate utility connection directly between 
the accessory dwelling unit and the utility, or to be charged a related connection 
fee or capacity charge; 

• Shall provide replacement off-street parking spaces to serve the primary 
residence if the proposed accessory dwelling unit would result from the 
conversion of an existing garage, carport or other covered parking structure.  
However, the applicant is not required to provide off-street parking to serve the 
accessory dwelling unit.   The replacement parking spaces may be located in any 
configuration on the lot and may be provided as covered spaces, uncovered 
spaces or tandem spaces or by the use of mechanical automobile parking lifts.    

The primary concern which arises from this provision allowing for garage conversions is 
the impact on parking, particularly in the Sterling Park neighborhood.  As noted above, 
state law specifies that additional covered or uncovered parking cannot be required for a 
new ADU within the footprint of an existing single family residence.  Nevertheless, the 
Town still has a parking requirement that must be maintained for all single family 
residences as outlined in CMC 5.03.260.  In particular, for all single family residences 
built prior to March 1, 1988, one covered space is required to be maintained for all 
single family dwelling units.  For all single family residences built after March 1, 1988, 2 
covered parking spaces are required. : 

New ADU’s in new ly created space 

The new legislation allows an ADU to be constructed as a physical addition onto an 
existing single family residence or as a detached structure.  However, new ADU’s are 
appropriate in the R, G and portions of the C zone.  Such new ADU’s would not be 
authorized in the R-S zone primarily due to the infrastructure impacts new ADU’s would 
have on R-S zone.  State law does allow the Town to restrict where new ADU’s in a 
newly created space may be located if various impacts will result. The R-S zone, 
otherwise known as Sterling Park, is a highly dense, small-lot, single family residential 



Staff Report re Accessory Dwelling Units  Page 4 of 5 
25977.00100\29520671.1  
02/09/17  

neighborhood with a residential density of approximately 16 units per acre.  The Town 
has consistently dealt with parking impacts in the R-S zone neighborhood.  The Town is 
in the process of looking at various ways to address the ongoing dense parking situation 
in the neighborhood. With the dense nature of the neighborhood there will be on-going 
issues with parking and traffic flow in Sterling Park that continue to plague the 
neighborhood.   

For newly constructed ADU’s, the following standards would apply: 

• The unit would be limited to no more than 50% of the floor area of the existing 
residence or 1,200 square feet, whichever is less; 

• One unit must be owner occupied and a deed restriction recorded; and 

• The ADU would be required to comply with all zoning requirements and 
development standards that apply to the construction of a residence or detached 
accessory structure in the CMC, such as height, parking setbacks etc.  

Council Adopted Values 
 
The recommendation is consistent with the Council value of responsibility  because it will 
update Accessory Dwelling Unit requirements so that the Town’s ordinance is consistent with 
state law, while also recognizing the unique characteristics of Colma. 

Sustainability Impact 
 
The amendment allows for in-fill housing, which has a positive environmental and sustainability 
impact by conserving land resources and allowing for housing close to transit.  
 
Alternative 
 
The City Council could choose not to introduce the ordinance which would keep the existing 
second unit (ADU) provisions in the CMC.  However, because the Town’s current provisions are 
not consistent with state law, state law will control. Not adopting the ordinance is not 
recommended since the Town is required to be in compliance with state law and to forward the 
new ordinance to the state department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) to 
demonstrate compliance.  

Since the state requirements take precedence over existing local laws, if the Council were not to 
adopt the ordinance, this would create ambiguity for staff and property owners on how to apply 
the new state law to their project.  Introducing the ordinance is recommended since it clarifies 
local accessory dwelling unit requirements which would be in compliance with state law. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends the City Council introduce and adopt the ordinance. 



Staff Report re Accessory Dwelling Units  Page 5 of 5 
25977.00100\29520671.1  
02/09/17  

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Ordinance 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Ord. No. ___ Accessory Units 2017 Legislation Page 1 of 13 
25977.00100\29520670.1
2/9/17  

ORDINANCE NO. ___ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING VARIOUS PROVISIONS IN CHAPTER 5 AND ADDING 
SUBCHAPTER 5.19 TO THE COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING ACCESSORY 

DWELLING UNIT REGULATIONS AND FINDING THE ORDINANCE TO BE 
STATUTORILY EXEMPT FROM ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW PURSUANT TO PUBLIC 

RESOURCES CODE SECTION 21080.17 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does ordain as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. CMC SECTION 5.03.270 REPEALED.1 

Section 5.03.270 shall be and hereby is repealed as follows: 

5.03.270 Second Dwelling Units. Second Dwelling units shall be permitted in any residential 
zone except the R-S zone, subject to the following. 

(a) Standards. A second dwelling unit permit will be issued only if the unit complies with the 
following standards: 

(1) Size: A Second Dwelling Unit may not be smaller than 150 square fee nor larger than 300 
square feet and may not contain more than one (1) bedroom. 

(2) Setbacks from property lines shall be provided in conformance with Section 5.03.250(a). 

(3) A minimum of one off-street parking space is required in addition to the parking 
requirement in section 5.03.250 (b), and may be located in the front setback area and in 
tandem with other required off-street spaces. 

(4) Maximum building height shall be a specified in Section 5.03.250 (c). 

(5) Design shall be consistent with the standards set forth in Section 5.03.250 (e), except that 
the minimum width shall be twelve feet. 

(6) A front door entrance shall be provided separate and distinct from the primary dwelling unit. 

(7) A separate utility meter shall be provided. 

(8) The primary residence or the second dwelling unit must be occupied by the owner of record 
of the property; 

(9) A permanent foundation shall be required for all Second Dwelling Units. 

1 Substantive changes have been identified as follows: New text has been underlined; revised text has 
been underlined, without showing the prior wording; and deleted text is shown with a strike-through line. 
Non-substantive changes, such as grammar and formatting are not identified. All markings will be 
removed from the final version that is adopted by the City Council. 

Attachment A



Ord. No. ___ Accessory Units 2017 Legislation Page 2 of 13 
25977.00100\29520670.1  
2/9/17  

(10) There shall be only one second dwelling unit on any individual property.  

(b) Permitting Procedures for Second Dwelling Units. Any application for a second dwelling unit 
permit shall be submitted to the Planning Department for verification that the proposal meets 
the standards set forth in Section 5.03.250 (a). Upon finding that the standards are met, the 
proposal shall be approved ministerially without discretionary review or public hearing and the 
applicant may proceed to acquire a Building Permit.  

(c) Deed Restrictions Applicable to Second Dwelling Units. Neither a Building Permit nor a 
Certificate of Occupancy may be issued for a second dwelling unit unless and until the property 
owner has filed with the County Recorder an Agreement of Restriction, which has been 
approved by the City Attorney as to form and content, containing a reference to the deed under 
which the property was acquired by the owner and stating the following:  

(1) The second dwelling unit shall not be sold separately from any part of the property 
on which it is located;  

(2) The second dwelling unit is restricted to the standards specified in Colma Municipal 
Code Section 5.03.270;  

(3) The second dwelling unit shall be considered legal only so long as either the primary 
residence or the second dwelling unit is occupied by the owner of record of the property;  

(4) The restrictions shall be binding upon any successor in ownership of the property 
and lack of compliance shall result in legal action against the property owner.  

[History: formerly § 5.331.2; ORD. 600, 6/25/03; ORD. 638, 12/14/05] 

 
ARTICLE 2. CMC SECTION 5.01.080  AMENDED. 

Certain definitions in Section 5.01.080 shall be and are hereby amended as follows, with all 
other definitions remaining: 

Accessory Building means a portion of building or a detached subordinate building located on 
the same lot, the use of which is customarily incidental to that of the main building or to the 
use of the land. A building or structure shall be considered part of the principal dwelling if a 
substantial part of the wall of a building is a part of the main building, or if the building or 
structure is attached to the main building in a substantial manner by a roof, or if there is a 
common wall with a doorway between the building and the principal dwelling. Examples of 
accessory buildings and structures that are customarily incidental to a residence include, but are 
not limited to: a detached garage, tool shed, storage shed, carport, greenhouse, gazebo, 
detached patio cover, and similar buildings; second dwelling accessory dwelling units are not 
accessory buildings per Subchapter 5.19. 

Dwelling unit means a building or portion thereof designed for occupancy by persons living as 
one household. [See: second dwelling accessory dwelling unit in Subchapter 5.19, single-family 
dwelling unit, multiple family dwelling unit.] 



Ord. No. ___ Accessory Units 2017 Legislation Page 3 of 13 
25977.00100\29520670.1  
2/9/17  

Second dwelling unit means a dwelling unit which provides complete independent living facilities 
on the same parcel as a legal single family dwelling including, but not limited to, the permanent 
provisions for sleeping, eating, cooking and sanitation. 

[History: formerly § 5.110, ORD. 234, 3/14/79; ORD. 298, 6/13/84; ORD. 319, 5/8/85; ORD. 
425, 7/10/91;ORD. 480, 5/10/95; ORD. 506, 3/12/97; ORD. 563, 10/18/99; ORD. 600, 6/25/03; 
ORD. 617, 6/16/04; ORD. 628, 5/11/05; ORD. 638, 12/14/05; ORD. 646, 7/12/06, ORD. 662, 
9/12/07; ORD. 687, 1/13/10; ORD. 706, 3/14/12; ORD. 713, 10/10/12; ORD. 724, 6/12/13; 
ORD. 728, 10/9/13; ORD. 754, 1/13/16; ORD. XX, xx/xx/17]  

[References: Health & Safety Code § 113758]  

 

 
ARTICLE 3. CMC SECTION 5.03.060  AMENDED. 

Section 5.03.060(b)(1) shall be and is hereby amended as follows: 

(b) The following uses may be permitted by the City Council on land located in the "G" Zone 
upon issuance of a use permit in accordance with the procedures hereinafter set forth:  

(1) Any use which now or hereafter may be customarily incident to a cemetery or memorial 
park use, including flower shops, monument shops, crematoriums, caretaker units, accessory 
dwelling units to caretaker units existing prior to May 31, 2017 as permitted in Subchapter 5.19, 
and cemetery corporation yards;  

[History: formerly § 5.312; ORD. 234, 3/14/79; ORD. 325, 11/13/85; ORD. 480, 5/10/95; ORD. 
520, 12/10/97; ORD. 638, 12/14/05; ORD. 728, 10/9/13; ORD. XX, xx/xx/17]  

 
ARTICLE 4. CMC SECTION 5.03.070  AMENDED. 

Section 5.03.070(a)(4) shall be and is hereby amended as follows: 

(a) The following uses are permitted on land located within the "R" Zone:  

(4) Second Accessory dwelling units as permitted in Subchapter 5.19;  

[History: formerly § 5.313, ORD. 234, 3/14/79; ORD. 346, 3/11/87; ORD. 442, 10/14/92; ORD. 
425, 7/10/91; ORD. 600 6/11/03; ORD.617, 6/16/04; ORD. 638, 12/14/05; ORD. 685,1/13/10; 
ORD. 706, 3/14/12; ORD. 724, 6/12/13; ORD. 728, 10/9/13; ; ORD. XX, xx/xx/17]  

[Authorities: Gov’t Code §§ 51035, 65850, 65589.5]  

 

 



Ord. No. ___ Accessory Units 2017 Legislation Page 4 of 13 
25977.00100\29520670.1  
2/9/17  

ARTICLE 5. CMC SECTION 5.03.080  AMENDED. 

Section 5.03.080(a), subsections (6), (7), and (8) shall be and are hereby amended as follows, 
with all other subsections remaining unchanged: 

(a) The following uses are permitted on land located within the "R-S" Zone:  

(6) Transitional housing; and  

(7) An accessory dwelling unit within the existing single family residential structure as permitted 
in Subchapter 5.19; and 

(8) A Home Office or Cottage Food Operation, provided that a Zoning Clearance has been 
issued in accordance with sections 5.03.234 or 5.03.235, and remains in effect for the property. 

[History: formerly § 5.313.1, ORD. 536, 7/8/98, ORD. 617, 6/16/04; ORD. 638, 12/14/05; ORD. 
685, 1/13/10; ORD. 706, 3/14/12; ORD. 724, 6/12/13; ORD. 728, 10/9/13; ORD. XX, xx/xx/17]  

[Authorities: Gov’t Code §§ 51035, 65850, 65589.5]  

 
ARTICLE 6. CMC SECTION 5.03.090 AMENDED. 

Section 5.03.090(a) shall be and is hereby amended as follows: 

(a) The following uses is are permitted in the "C" Zone:  

(1) An emergency shelter; and 

(2) An accessory dwelling pursuant to Section 5.19, which shall be limited to only existing 
single-family residential structures existing as of May 2017 and only where permitted by the 
General Plan. 

[History: formerly § 5.314; ORD. 234, 3/14/79; ORD. 309, 2/13/85; ORD. 425, 7/10/91; Ord. 
506, 3/12/97; ORD. 638, 12/14/05; ORD. 720, 5/8/13; ORD. 728, 10/9/13; ORD. 737, 1/14/15; 
ORD. 758, 2/24/16; ORD. XX, xx/xx/17]  

 
 
ARTICLE 7. CMC SUBCHAPTER 5.19 ADDED. 

Subchapter 5.19 is hereby is added as follows:  

CHAPTER FIVE: PLANNING, ZONING, USE, AND  
DEVELOPMENT OF LAND AND IMPROVEMENTS  

 
Subchapter 5.19: Accessory Dwelling Units 

5.19.010  Findings.  



Ord. No. ___ Accessory Units 2017 Legislation Page 5 of 13 
25977.00100\29520670.1  
2/9/17  

The City Council of the Town of Colma hereby finds that: 

A. The Town of Colma California (the “Town”) is a municipal corporation, duly 
organized under the constitution and laws of the State of California. 

B. The Planning and Zoning Law authorizes cities to provide by ordinance for the 
creation of accessory dwelling units.  

C. To address California’s shortage of housing supply, the California Legislature 
approved, and the Governor signed into law, Assembly Bill 2299 (Bloom, Chapter 735, Stats. 
2016) and Senate Bill 1069 (Wieckowski, Chapter 720, Stats. 2016). 

D. Assembly Bill 2299 and Senate Bill 1069 are double jointing bills, which among 
other things, amend California Government Code Section 65852.2. These statutes impose new 
limitations on local authority to regulate second units, which are now referred to as “accessory 
dwelling units” (“ADU”).  

E. Assembly Bill 2299 became effective on January 1, 2017 and will render all non-
compliant local ordinances null and void on that date unless and until an agency adopts an 
ordinance that complies with Government Code Section 65852.2. 

F. The Town desires to amend the local regulatory scheme for accessory dwelling 
units that fully complies with Assembly Bill 2299.  

5.19.020  Purpose.  

The purpose of this chapter is to provide reasonable regulations for the development of 
accessory dwelling units in certain areas and on lots developed or proposed to be developed 
with single-family residential dwellings. Such accessory dwelling units contribute needed 
housing to the community’s housing stock and promote housing opportunities for the persons 
wishing to reside in the Town of Colma.  In addition, the regulations in this ordinance are 
intended to promote the goals and policies of the City’s General Plan and comply with 
requirements codified in the state Planning and Zoning Law related to accessory dwelling units 
in residential areas, including California Government Code section 65852.2.  

5.19.030  Definitions. 

“Accessory dwelling unit” means a residential dwelling unit that is detached from, 
attached to, or located within the living area of an existing primary dwelling unit, and 
that provides independent living facilities for one or more persons. An accessory 
dwelling unit also includes an efficiency unit, as defined in California Health and Safety 
Code section 17958.1, and a manufactured home, as defined in section 18007.  

“Living area” is defined as the interior habitable area of a dwelling unit, including 
basements and attics, but not including a garage or any accessory structure. 

5.19.040 Effect of Conforming Accessory Dwelling Unit 

An accessory dwelling unit that conforms to this chapter shall: 



Ord. No. ___ Accessory Units 2017 Legislation Page 6 of 13 
25977.00100\29520670.1  
2/9/17  

A. Be deemed an accessory use or an accessory building and not be considered to 
exceed the allowable density for the lot upon which it is located; 

B. Be deemed a residential use that is consistent with the General Plan and the 
zoning designations for the lot;  

C. Not be considered in the application of any ordinance, policy, or program to limit 
residential growth; and  

D. Not be considered a new residential use for the purposes of calculating 
connection fees or capacity charges for utilities, including water and sewer 
service.  

5.19.050 Locations Permitted. 

A. Accessory dwelling units may be permitted in the “R” zone and on lots containing 
existing single-family residences in the “G” and “C” zones and subject to the 
standards in Section 5.19.070. 

B. Accessory dwelling units that meet the requirements of Section 5.19.070 (B) may 
be located in the “R” and “R-S” zones. 

5.19.060 Permit Procedures. 

A. Permits. 

1. Except as provided in subparagraph (2), approved applications for an 
accessory dwelling unit will result in an accessory dwelling unit permit. 
The applicant shall also obtain a building permit as required by the 
building code and record a deed restriction as provided in Section 
5.19.080. 

2. Exception. Accessory dwelling units that meet the requirements of 
Section 5.19.070(B) shall obtain a building permit as required by the 
building code and record a deed restriction as provided in Section 
5.19.080. 

B. Application Processing. 

1. Applications for an accessory dwelling unit permit must be submitted to 
the City Planner on a form and with information and materials, as 
adopted by the City Planner. 

2. The City Planner may collect a fee for processing the application, 
provided such fee is approved by resolution of the City Council. 

C. Review. 

1. The City Planner will review and approve complete applications for an 
accessory dwelling unit permit that comply with the requirements of 



Ord. No. ___ Accessory Units 2017 Legislation Page 7 of 13 
25977.00100\29520670.1  
2/9/17  

Sections 5.19.070 (Standards) and 5.19.080 (Deed Restrictions). The 
accessory dwelling unit permit application shall be considered ministerially 
without any discretionary review or a hearing. 

2. The City Planner will approve or disapprove of an application for an 
accessory dwelling unit permit within 120 days after receiving the 
complete application. 

3. Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, the construction of an 
accessory dwelling unit shall be subject to any applicable fees adopted 
pursuant to the requirements of California Government Code, Title 7, 
Division 1, Chapter 5 (commencing with Section 66000) and Chapter 7 
(commencing with Section 66012). 

5.19.070 Standards. 

A. Except as provided in subparagraph (B), accessory dwelling units must meet the 
following standards: 

1. Development on the Lot.  

(a) A single-family dwelling must exist on the lot or be constructed in 
conjunction with the accessory dwelling unit.  

(b) The accessory dwelling unit must be:  

(i) Detached from the existing primary dwelling, but located 
on the same lot as the existing dwelling; 

(ii) Attached to the existing dwelling; or  

(iii) Located within the living area of the existing dwelling. 

(c) Only one accessory dwelling unit shall be allowed per lot. 

(d) The accessory dwelling unit is not intended for sale separate from 
the primary residence. 

2. Occupancy. 

(a) The property owner must occupy either the primary dwelling or 
accessory dwelling unit. 

(b) The accessory dwelling unit may be rented, but shall only be 
rented for terms longer than 30 days. 

3. Building and Construction. 

(a) An accessory dwelling unit shall include permanent provisions for 
living, sleeping, eating, cooking, and sanitation. 



Ord. No. ___ Accessory Units 2017 Legislation Page 8 of 13 
25977.00100\29520670.1  
2/9/17  

(b) An accessory dwelling unit is required to have fire sprinklers, only 
if the primary residence is also required to have fire sprinklers.  

(c) An accessory dwelling unit must receive the approval by either the 
North San Mateo County Sanitation District or South San Francisco 
Sewer where a private sewage disposal system is being used.  

(d) An accessory dwelling unit shall meet the requirements of the 
building code, as adopted and amended by Chapter 5, Subchapter 
4 of the Municipal Code, that apply to detached dwellings, as 
appropriate. 

(e) A separate utility connection shall be installed directly between 
the accessory dwelling unit and the utility. The connection shall be 
subject to a connection fee or capacity charge, or both, 
proportionate to the burden of the proposed unit, based on either 
its size or the number of its plumbing fixtures, upon the water or 
sewer system. 

(f) No passageway shall be required in conjunction with the 
construction of an accessory dwelling unit. “Passageway” is 
defined as a pathway that is unobstructed clear to the sky and 
extends from to street to one entrance of the accessory dwelling 
unit.  

4. Parking.  

(a) Except as provided in subparagraph (b):  

(i) Accessory dwelling units must meet the following parking 
standards: 

(I) For accessory dwelling units with no separate 
bedrooms, one off-street parking space shall be 
provided per unit. 

(II) For accessory dwelling units with at least one 
separate bedroom, one off-street parking space 
shall be provided per bedroom.  

(ii) If parking is required:  

(I) The required parking spaces may be located on 
setback areas approved by the City Planner or 
tandem parking on an existing driveway, unless 
specific findings are made under subparagraph (II).  

(II) Parking arrangements in subparagraph (I) may be 
prohibited if the City Planner makes specific 



Ord. No. ___ Accessory Units 2017 Legislation Page 9 of 13 
25977.00100\29520670.1  
2/9/17  

findings that such parking arrangements are not 
feasible based upon specific site or regional 
topographical or fire or life safety conditions, or 
that such arrangements are not permitted 
anywhere in the jurisdiction. 

(III) When a garage, carport, or covered parking 
structure is demolished in conjunction with the 
construction of an accessory dwelling unit, the 
replacement spaces may be located in any 
configuration on the same lot as the accessory 
dwelling unit, including, but not limited to, as 
covered spaces, uncovered spaces, tandem spaces, 
or by the use of mechanical automobile parking 
lifts.  

(b) Parking standards shall not be imposed on an accessory dwelling 
unit in any of the following circumstances: 

(i) The accessory dwelling unit is located within one-half mile 
of public transit. 

(ii) The accessory dwelling unit is located within an 
architecturally and historically significant historic district. 

(iii) The accessory dwelling unit is part of the existing primary 
residence or an existing accessory structure. 

(iv) When on-street parking permits are required but not 
offered to the occupant of the accessory dwelling unit. 

(v) When there is a car share vehicle located within one block 
of the accessory dwelling unit. 

5. Height.  

The accessory dwelling unit must meet the height standards of the 
applicable zoning district. 

6. Setbacks. 

(a) Except as provided in subparagraphs (b) and (c), an accessory 
dwelling unit must meet the setback standards of the applicable 
zoning district.  

(b) No setback shall be required for a legally established existing 
garage that is converted to an accessory dwelling unit.   



Ord. No. ___ Accessory Units 2017 Legislation Page 10 of 13 
25977.00100\29520670.1  
2/9/17  

(c) A minimum setback of five (5) feet shall be required from the side 
and rear lot lines for an accessory dwelling unit constructed above 
a legally established existing garage.  

7. Unit Size.  

(a) The increased floor area of an attached accessory dwelling unit 
shall not exceed 50 percent of the existing living area, with a 
maximum increase in floor area of 1200 square feet. 

(b) The total area of floor space for a detached accessory dwelling 
unit shall not exceed 1200 square feet.  

(c) The accessory dwelling unit shall contain no less than the 150 
square feet area minimum required for an efficiency dwelling unit 
as defined in Section 17958.1 of the Health & Safety Code. 

8. Landscape.  

The accessory dwelling unit must meet the landscaping standards of the 
applicable zoning district. If new landscaping is installed, it should be the 
Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance standards in Chapter 5, Subchapter 
11 of the Colma Municipal Code.  

9. Architecture Review.  

The design of the accessory dwelling unit shall relate to the design of the 
primary residence by use of the similar exterior wall materials, window 
types, door and window trims, roofing materials and roof pitch. 

10. Impacts to Historic Places. 

To prevent adverse impacts to any real property that is listed in or eligible 
for the California Register of Historic Places, accessory dwelling units 
should only be located within the footprint of the existing structure or be 
a separate detached accessory structure with minimal or no visibility from 
a public street.  

B. An accessory dwelling unit is exempt from the requirements of subparagraph (A) 
if the unit meets all the requirements of subparagraph (B)(1): 

1. The accessory dwelling unit: 

(a) Is one accessory dwelling unit per single-family lot located within 
a single-family residential zone; 

(b) Is contained within the existing living area space of a single-family 
residence or accessory structure; 

(c) Has independent exterior access from the existing residence; and 



Ord. No. ___ Accessory Units 2017 Legislation Page 11 of 13 
25977.00100\29520670.1  
2/9/17  

(d) The side and rear setbacks are sufficient for fire safety.  

2. If the requirements of subparagraph (B)(1) are met, then the applicant:  

(a) Is required to install fire sprinklers in the accessory dwelling unit if 
the primary residence is also required to have fire sprinklers; 

(b) Is not required to install a new or separate utility connection 
directly between the accessory dwelling unit and the utility, or to 
be charged a related connection fee or capacity charge. 

(c) Shall record a deed restriction as provided in Section 5.19.080 and 
obtain a building permit as required by the building code as 
adopted and amended by Chapter 5, Subchapter 4 of the 
Municipal Code. 

(d) Shall provide replacement off-street parking spaces to serve the 
primary residence if the proposed accessory dwelling unit would 
result in the conversion of an existing garage, carport or other 
covered parking structure.  However, the applicant is not required 
to provide off-street parking to serve the accessory dwelling unit.  
The replacement parking spaces may be located in any 
configuration on the lot and may be provided as covered spaces, 
uncovered spaces or tandem spaces or by the use of mechanical 
automobile parking lifts.    

5.19.080 Deed Restriction. 

A. Prior to issuance of a building permit for an accessory dwelling unit, a deed 
restriction shall be recorded against the title of the property in the County 
Recorder’s office and a copy filed with the Planning Department. Said deed 
restriction shall run with the land, and shall bind all future owners, heirs, 
successors, or assigns. The form of the deed restriction shall be provided by the 
City and shall provide that: 

1. The accessory dwelling unit shall not be sold separately from the primary 
residence. 

2. The unit is restricted to the approved size and attributes of this chapter. 

3. The deed restrictions run with the land and may be enforced against 
future purchasers. 

4. The deed restrictions may be removed if the owner eliminates the 
accessory dwelling unit as evidenced by the removal of the kitchen 
facilities and all utility connections and line extensions to support the unit. 

5. The deed restrictions shall be enforced by the City Planner or his or her 
designee for the benefit of the Town of Colma. Failure of the property 



Ord. No. ___ Accessory Units 2017 Legislation Page 12 of 13 
25977.00100\29520670.1  
2/9/17  

owner to comply with the deed restrictions may result in legal action 
against the property owner and the Town shall be authorized to obtain 
any remedy available to it at law or equity, including but not limited to 
obtaining an injunction enjoining use of the accessory dwelling unit in 
violation of the recorded restrictions or abatement of the illegal unit. 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

ARTICLE 8. SEVERABILITY.  

Each of the provisions of this Ordinance is severable from all other provisions. If any article, 
section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

 
ARTICLE 9. NOT A CEQA PROJECT. 

The City Council of the Town of Colma finds the adoption of this ordinance to be statutorily 
exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to 
Section 21080.17 of the Public Resources Code because it is an ordinance regarding accessory 
dwelling units in a single-family or multifamily residential zone to implement the provisions of 
Government Code Section 65852.2.   

 
ARTICLE 10. EFFECTIVE DATE.  

This ordinance, or a summary thereof prepared by the City Attorney, shall be posted on the 
three (3) official bulletin boards of the Town of Colma within 15 days of its passage and is to 
take force and effect thirty (30) days after its passage. 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

ARTICLE 11. FILING. 

The City Clerk shall submit a copy of this ordinance to the Department of Housing and 
Community Development within 60 days after adoption. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Ord. No. ___ Accessory Units 2017 Legislation Page 13 of 13 
25977.00100\29520670.1  
2/9/17  

Certificate of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Ordinance No. ___ was duly introduced at a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the Town of Colma held on March 8, 2017 and duly adopted at a regular 
meeting of said City Council held on _________ ___, 2017 by the following vote: 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      

Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      

Joanne F. del Rosario       

John Irish Goodwin      

Diana Colvin      

Voting Tally      

 

 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Helen Fisicaro, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report – Infill and Sitework Budget Amendment Page 1 of 6 
3/3/2016

STAFF REPORT

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Sean Rabé, City Manager 
Brad Donohue, Director of Public Works 
Paul Rankin, Finance Director 

MEETING DATE: March 8, 2017 

SUBJECT: Town Hall Renovation Budget Amendment 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following resolution: 

RESOLUTION AMENDING BUDGET APPROPRIATIONS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 
REGARDING THE TOWN HALL RENOVATION PROJECT BUDGET 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The proposed resolution will amend the construction budget for the Town Hall Renovation 
project allowing for the completion of Phase V (infill and site work). Funding for the budget 
amendment will come from the budget surpluses held in the Town’s Unassigned Reserves, 
which has more than adequate capacity to fund the amendment.   

FISCAL IMPACT 

The established budget for the entire project was set at $13 million by the City Council in Fiscal 
Year 2014/2015. Of this amount $10 million was estimated as being necessary for construction 
of the improvements and expansion of the building. The remainder of the budget included 
allocations for associated costs including contract services, design, equipment and furnishings, 
etc. 

A Budget Amendment of $5 million is proposed. This proposed increase will increase the $13 
million project budget to $18 million.  

The source of the additional appropriation will be a combination of the 2016-2017 General Fund 
Appropriation to Reserves of ($1,878,000) plus a reduction in Unassigned General Fund 
Reserves in the amount of $3,121,253. At the time the 2016-2017 Budget was adopted Staff 
noted that there was an unappropriated balance that would be addressed as part of future 
Capital Project discussions. As of the Mid-Year Budget report the balance in the Unassigned 
General Fund Reserves was projected to be $8.9 million by June 30, 2017 without this 
additional authorized spending. The reduction caused by the additional project costs will still 
allow the Town to maintain its sound financial foundation. Upon approval of the Budget Change 
the funds will be transferred from the General Fund (#11) to the General CIP Fund (#31).  

Item #9



Staff Report – Infill and Sitework Budget Amendment  Page 2 of 6 
3/3/2016  

BACKGROUND 

On November 9, 2016, the City Council adopted a resolution rejecting all bids received for 
Phase V and authorized the City Manager to engage in direct negotiations with a contractor to 
complete Phase V through force account. Phase V is the last major phase of work which 
includes the following:  

• Labor, materials and equipment required to purchase, fabricate and install the metal 
stud wall framing, insulation, sheetrock, plaster, wall and floor finishes, roofing and roof 
tiles, waterproofing and flashings, windows, mechanical/electrical/data/plumbing/, 
interior finishes, elevator, fire suppression systems and fixtures, landscaping, 
hardscapes, planters, enclosures, guard/handrails, utilities and utility undergrounding, 
etc. for the new addition. 

• The Renovation of the Historic Town Hall in Phase V includes all the labor, materials and 
equipment required to purchase, fabricate and install the wood wall framing, insulation, 
sheetrock, plaster, touch up, select seismic retrofitting City Council Chamber 
modifications to comply with ADA, existing rough carpentry touch up, wall and floor 
finishes, roof tiles, waterproofing and flashings, seismic expansion joint install, 
mechanical/electrical/data, AV/plumbing/fire suppression systems and custom light 
fixtures, etc. 

In addition, the Contractor shall be responsible for preserving and maintaining the existing 
historic look and feel of the 1941 building.  

Furniture, Fixtures and other Equipment (FF&E) scopes of work shall be completed under Phase 
VI, which will be bid out as a stand-alone package. 

As Council will recall, the project has been broken down into the several phases. These phases 
(and their status) are shown below: 

• Phase I – Hazmat Abatement at Old Town Hall – Phase Complete 

• Phase II – Select Building Demolition – Phase Complete 

• Phase III – Mass Grading, Excavation and Building Foundations – Phase Complete 

• Phase IV – Structural Steel – To be complete in February 2017 

• Phase V – Infill and Sitework – Construction to begin February 2017 

• Phase VI – Free Standing Furniture and Equipment (FF&E) – Fall of 2017 

On November 9, 2016, staff recommended and City Council approved the rejection of all bids 
for Phase V of the Town of Colma Town Hall Renovation and Additions Project and elected by a 
four-fifths vote of the City Council to perform the work by Force Account pursuant to Public 
Contract Code 22038.  Upon meeting with and interviewing five very qualified General 
Contractors between November and December of 2016, Staff proceeded to negotiate Phase V 
via Force Account with BBI Construction, a reputable East Bay commercial construction firm 
with a strong resume in Value Engineering (VE).  

Together the Town, BBI Construction, Ratcliff Architects and their design consultants began the 
process of Value Engineering. The VE endeavor is a common practice used by owners, 
contractors and designers alike to reduce costs of a project without removing scope. This 
process re-evaluates specific areas of the project for efficiency, cost and constructability 
savings. Some common areas include evaluating material costs to find less expensive products 



Staff Report – Infill and Sitework Budget Amendment  Page 3 of 6 
3/3/2016  

while maintaining equal function, utilizing alternative manufacturers whom may provide equal 
products (while again maintain equal function), incorporating alternate installation methods to 
reduce schedule and/or streamline installation and the most common, soliciting constructability 
comments from contractors and subcontractors alike.  

Subcontractors are valued in the VE effort in that they are the most knowledgeable group about 
their specific scopes and trades. The various contractors, management teams and field crews 
have first-hand experience on both procuring, constructing and installing the materials and 
products; their feedback is key to determining where costs can be saved without altering or 
effecting the look, shape and feel of the project. 

For example, upon rejecting all bids on November 9th, the Town received pertinent feedback 
from various electrical subcontractors that bid the project. Their analysis was that the project 
plans and specifications are constraining due to the material selection and the electrical 
suppliers and methods of install. Once the bids were rejected and the Town could legally 
interact with bidders, substantial costs saving were recognized.  This feedback was relayed to 
the architectural team, who is working with the Town to make modifications and drive project 
costs down while still maintaining the City Council’s vision for the project.   

ANALYSIS 

The cost of construction in the public and private sectors is unprecedented and unexplainable. 
Many speculate that with a growing economy and an abundance of work, contractor and 
material vendors are stretched and unavailable to even bid on projects, thus the ones that do 
bid have for various reasons increased their costs to unprecedented highs. For example, a 
conversation between the City Manager and the Assistant County Administrative Officer 
revealed that the County’s construction projects are routinely coming in between 25 and 40 
percent higher than estimated. To verify this dilemma, Staff has tested the market in many of 
the sub-trades that would be involved in the project to see if the pricing was overpriced or if 
this is the new reality. The pricing kept on coming back consistently higher than estimated, thus 
giving credit to reality that costs today have risen to unprecedented highs. Costs continue to 
escalate and if the Town waits much longer to begin construction we will likely see not only 
higher prices but also a potential lack of available contractors (which would drive costs even 
higher). 

City Council realized this at the November 2016 City Council Meeting where they rejected all 
bids and allowed the City Manager to negotiate with qualified contractors who are familiar with 
costing out a project with Value Engineering strategies to help assist with lowering construction 
costs.  

This effort produced material substitutions and means and methods revisions with various 
scopes of work.  Some of these modifications produced large savings, while others were more 
moderate. In total, however, the VE savings prove significant (approximately $1 million thus 
far). Some major areas which were affected are as follows:  

• Reduction of scope of voluntary seismic retrofit to the 1941 building. The structural 
design was excessive to what is actually needed at the existing 1941 structure. Reducing 
this work limits demolition and replacement of existing structures in the building. 

• Modifications to the staff patio area where the paver system was deleted and integrated 
color concrete will instead be installed, this provides the same aesthetic look with a less 
expensive means of install.   



Staff Report – Infill and Sitework Budget Amendment  Page 4 of 6 
3/3/2016  

• Substitution to interior office storefront system from Blomberg to Old Castle window 
systems  

• Building caps revised from custom cantera stone to more readily available pre-cast items 
of similar aesthetics and dimensions.  

• Lighting fixture revisions with alternate manufacturers and profile types; fixtures will 
maintain necessary Title 24 requirements  

• Electrical installation methods have been altered where conduit can be reduced and the 
use of MC cabling in concealed locations in both the 1941 building and addition are 
acceptable. 

• Data install methods have been reduced to limit conduit install and utilize j hooks/cable 
trays in concealed locations in both buildings. 

While the VE effort significantly decreased the overall project cost from that of the rejected 
bids, the final cost is still much higher than what was previously assumed. The cost of 
construction can be attributed directly to the nature of the bidding climate in the San Francisco 
Bay Area. Material costs and labor wages are at a record high for the region and compliance 
with new stringent building and energy efficient codes also impacts costs. And there is simply 
an abundance of building occurring in the Bay Area, which creates a scarcity in available labor 
(particularly in skilled trades).  

Many of the specific VE items explained above were explored and accepted by Staff and the 
design team; these items have been incorporated by the contractor in efforts to lower the 
overall construction costs. Many VE items were rejected by Staff and the design team as they 
were deemed to be too significant of a change and would compromise the overall design and 
integrity of the project previously approved by City Council. A good example of this is the 
modification of the front steps of the 1941 building: if the steps were left alone (no ADA 
improvements made) and the primary entrance of the building were instead highlighted as 
coming off the parking lot, a significant savings would have been seen. However, Staff is keenly 
aware of the Council’s desire to keep the front entrance of Town Hall as the focus of the 
building and the original intent of the project was to make the 1941 building ADA accessible. In 
these cases, the contractor deleted/omitted the VE option from their cost estimates, even 
though they would have aided the overall cost reduction process.  

Staff is very aware of Council’s desires and intentions for the design and the look of Town Hall 
and would not approve any changes that would alter or compromise that without first 
consulting with City Council.   

Staff is requesting the City Council approve the amendment to the construction budget in the 
amount of $5 million. The following Table shows the impact of the adjusted budget and funding 
sources: 

 

 

 

 

 



Staff Report – Infill and Sitework Budget Amendment  Page 5 of 6 
3/3/2016  

GENERAL FUND BUDGET & IMPACT ON RESERVES CURRENT vs. AFTER ADJUSTMENT 

 

  

Projection 
February 2017 

(After Mid-
Year Adj) 

 

Use of 
Reserves For 

Town Hall 
March 2017 

Beginning Balance 7/1/2016  $22,594,248  
 

$22,594,248  

   
 

 
CURRENT GENERAL FUND BUDGET (FEB. 2017) 

 
 

2016-17 Revenue & Transfers-In  $17,036,712  
 

$17,036,712  
     2016-17 Expenditures & Transfers-Out   ($15,157,965) 

 
($15,157,965) 

2016-17 Additional Town Hall Appropriation    
 

($5,000,000) 
     Net Change In General Fund Balance  $1,878,747  

 
($3,121,253) 

   
 

 
Projected Ending Balance 6/30/2017  $24,472,995  

 
$19,472,995  

 

As shown above after the Mid-Year Budget Adjustments the current year revenues were 
expected to exceed the amount required for current expenditures by $1.8 million.  Therefore, 
the proposed additional appropriation of $5 million will only impact the projected reserves 
ending balance by $3,121,253. 

In accordance with policies established by the City Council, the Town records its reserves as 
either committed, Assigned, or Unassigned.  As shown below even after the additional 
appropriation the Town continues to have funds in the “Unassigned Category”, which may be 
appropriate to use to reduce liabilities or contribute towards other one–time uses.  This can be 
done prudently given that the Town retains a significant committed funds in a separate Budget 
Stabilization category. 

BREAKDOWN OF PROJECTED GENERAL FUND RESERVES CURRENT vs.  

AFTER ADJUSTMENT 

 

 
 

Projection 
February 2017 

(After Mid-
Year Adj)

Use of 
Reserves For 

Town Hall 
March 2017

Debt Reduction $600,000 $600,000
Committed

Budget Stabilization 14,000,000 14,000,000
Litigation 100,000 100,000

Assigned Insurance 100,000 100,000
Disaster Response / Recovery 750,000 750,000

Unassigned 8,922,995 3,922,995
Projected Ending Balance 6/30/2017 $24,472,995 $19,472,995



Staff Report – Infill and Sitework Budget Amendment  Page 6 of 6 
3/3/2016  

It should be noted that in addition to the $1.8 million surplus the Town is anticipating at the 
end of FY 2016-17, the Town had a $2.5 million surplus at the end of FY 2015-16. Thus, the $5 
million budget increase is nearly accommodated by the surpluses of the last two years ($4.3 
million).  

Construction contingencies are included in the proposed budget amendment. Once construction 
starts in the next phase, opportunities regarding construction savings will become more 
apparent. Staff, designers and the contractor believe that we can still continue the VE effort 
while in construction, thus achieving lowering construction costs.   

If approved, the City Manager and BBI Construction will proceed with executing a construction 
contract in anticipation of starting construction on Phase V in March of 2017.  

COUNCIL ADOPTED VALUES 

Approval of the proposed budget amendment is the responsible action because the City 
Council will have considered budget amendment’s long term financial implications versus the 
construction cost implications of not moving forward at this time. Approval of the budget 
amendment is also the responsible action because the value engineering process that Staff has 
undertaken has reduced construction costs as much as possible at this point.  

ALTERNATIVES 

The City Council could choose to not approve the budget amendment. Doing so, however is not 
recommended because the project would not have sufficient funds to proceed in its current 
scope and redesign would have to be considered. This would result in significant delays and 
could result in further cost increases .  

CONCLUSION  

Staff recommends the City Council approve the Resolution, approving a budget amendment in 
the amount of $ 5,000,000. 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Budget Amendment Resolution 



 Res. 2017-##, Amending Town Hall Budget Page 1 of 2 
25977.00100\29518288.1

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-__ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION AMENDING BUDGET APPROPRIATIONS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 
REGARDING THE TOWN HALL RENOVATION PROJECT BUDGET 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve: 

1. Background

(a) The City Council adopted a budget for Fiscal Year 2016-2017 on June 8, 2016.

(b) As part of the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 budget, the City Council appropriated thirteen million
dollars ($13,000,000) for the Town Hall Renovation Project (the “Project”) budget based on 
previous Council actions. 

(c) Town staff has identified that Phase V of the Project (Infill and Sitework) has estimated 
costs that are higher than anticipated thus necessitating a change in the total Project budget. 

(d) The Town’s adopted budget policy provides that the City Council shall approve any 
amendment to an original budget appropriation. 

(e) The City Council has duly considered the Staff Report and public comments, if any, in 
considering this budget amendment. 

2. Finding

(a) The City Council finds that based on changes since the original budget was adopted that it
is appropriate to have the City Council approve an amendment to the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 
budget in the amount of $5,000,000, to be moved from Fund 11 (General Fund) to Fund 31 
(Capital Improvement Fund).   

(b) The City Council finds that the total expenditures in the 2016-2017 budget, after the 
proposed amendment, will not exceed the appropriations limits for fiscal year 2016-2017, which is 
$40,596,874.75. 

(c) The approval of the budget amendment will continue to result in a balanced budget with 
current year General Fund Operating Revenue exceeding the amount of current Year General Fund 
Operating Expenses. 

3. Order; Amendment to Budget

(a) The Fiscal Year 2016-2017 budget is amended by $5,000,000. Said amendment is to be
moved from Fund 11 (General Fund) to Fund 31 (Capital Improvement Fund). 

(b) The City Manager shall ensure that the changes are incorporated in the official Finance and 
Accounting systems as detailed above. 



  
Res. 2017-##, Amending Town Hall Budget Page 2 of 2 
25977.00100\29518288.1  

4. Effective Date.   

(a) This resolution shall become effective upon adoption. 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2017-__ was duly adopted at a regular meeting of said 
City Council held on March 8, 2017 by the following vote: 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      

Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      

Joanne F. del Rosario       

John Irish Goodwin      

Diana Colvin      

Voting Tally      
 
 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Helen Fisicaro, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 
 


	03.08.17 Regular Meeting Agenda
	1. Closed Session
	2. Closed Session
	3. 02.22.17  Regular Minutes
	4. Report of Checks Paid - February
	5. 2016 General Plan and Housing Element Annual Report
	A. 2016 Annual Report on the Implementation of the Housing Element, including Tables A-C
	B. 2016 Annual Report on the Implementation of the General Plan, Remaining Elements

	6. Semi-Annual Report of Investment Holdings
	7. Establishing a Retiree Health Savings Program
	A. Resolution
	Exhibit A. Retiree Welfare Benefits Plan
	Exhibit B. Employer Vantagecare RHS Adoption Agreement
	Exhibit C. Administrative Services Agreement
	Exhibit D. Declaration of Trust


	8. Accessory Dwelling Unit Ordinance
	A. Ordinance

	9. Town Hall Renovation Budget Amendment
	A. Resolution 




